
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Emma Sullivan 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864420   Ebost: sullie@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 22 Chwefror 2023 

 
 
I bwy bynnag a fynno wybod, 
 
Cynhelir cyfarfod aml-leoliad o'r Gweithgor Cangen Crymlyn - Camlas Sir Fynwy ac Aberhonddu yn 
Nhŷ Penallta, a thrwy Microsoft Teams ar Dydd Iau, 2ail Mawrth, 2023 am 5.00 pm i ystyried y materion 

a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol. Gall Cynghorwyr ac aelodau'r cyhoedd sy’n dymuno siarad ar unrhyw 
eitem wneud hynny drwy wneud cais i’r Cadeirydd.  Mae hefyd croeso i chi ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn y 
cyfarfod, mae angen o leiaf 3 diwrnod gwaith o rybudd os byddwch chi'n dymuno gwneud y naill neu'r llall.  
Bydd gwasanaeth cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu ar gais.   
 
Gall aelodau'r Cyhoedd neu'r Wasg fynychu'n bersonol yn Nhŷ Penallta neu gallant weld y cyfarfod yn fyw 
drwy'r ddolen ganlynol: live via the following link: https://civico.net/caerphilly   
 

 

Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ffrydio'n fyw a bydd recordiad ar gael i'w weld drwy wefan y Cyngor, ac 
eithrio trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr 

unigolion sy'n siarad ar gael yn gyhoeddus i bawb drwy wefan y Cyngor:  
 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 
 

 

2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 
 

Public Document Pack

https://civico.net/caerphilly
https://civico.net/caerphilly


 
 

 

Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 

 
3  I benodi Is-Gadeirydd am y flwyddyn nesaf. 

 
 

I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
4  Cynhaliwyd y Gweithgor Cangen Crymlyn - Camlas Sir Fynwy ac Aberhonddu ar 25ain 

Gorffennaf 2022. 
1 - 8 

 

5  I dderbyn diweddariad ar faterion sy’n ymwneud â’r Gamlas. 
9 - 14 

 

6  I dderbyn a diweddaru gan MBACT (diweddariad llafar). 
 

 

 
 
Cylchrediad: 
 

Cynghorwyr N. George, A. Leonard, P. Leonard, B. Owen, D.W.R. Preece, J. Simmonds, A. Whitcombe 
(Cadeirydd), K. Woodland a C. Wright 
 
Ymddiriedolaeth Camlesi Sir Fynwy, Aberhonddu a’r Fenni – Rev. J. Collier a L. Gauntlett 
 
Aelod Cabinet perthnasol: C. Morgan 
 
A Swyddogion Priodol 
 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 
Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodi on y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
 
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael e i brosesu. 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd  neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy 
e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


 
 

 

MONMOUTHSHIRE AND BRECON CANAL - CRUMLIN ARM 
WORKING GROUP 

 
MINUTES OF THE MULTI-LOCATIONAL MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE 
AND VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS ON MONDAY 25TH JULY 2022 AT 5.00 P.M. 

 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillors: 
 

N. George, P. Leonard, D.W.R. Preece, J. Simmonds, A. Whitcombe, K. Woodland,  
C. Wright 
 
Cabinet Member for Waste, Leisure and Green Spaces: Councillor C. Morgan  

 
Together with: 

 
S. Stook (Principal Engineer), J. Pitman (Senior Assistant Engineer), G. Lewis (Principal 
Regeneration Projects Officer), B. Smith (Regeneration Projects Officer), R. Barrett 
(Committee Services Officer), S. Hughes (Committee Services Officer) 

 
Representing Monmouthshire, Brecon and Abergavenny Canals Trust: Mr R. Dommett 
(Regeneration Consultant), Reverend J. Collier (Chair of MBACT) 
 

 
Also present: 

 
Mr R. Wysom (Islwyn Canal Association) 
 
 
RECORDING,  FILMING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS 

 

All present were reminded that the meeting was being live-streamed and recorded and 
would be made available following the meeting via the Council’s website – Click Here to 
View.   Members were advised that voting on decisions would be taken via Microsoft Forms.   
 

 
1. TO APPOINT A CHAIR FOR THE ENSUING YEAR 
 

 It was moved and seconded that Councillor Andrew Whitcombe be appointed as Chair of the 
Canal Group for the ensuing year.  By a show of hands (and in noting there were 7 for, 0 
against and 0 abstentions) this was unanimously agreed. 

 
RESOLVED that Councillor A. Whitcombe be appointed as Chair of the 
Monmouthshire and Brecon Canal - Crumlin Arm Working Group. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

https://civico.net/caerphilly
https://civico.net/caerphilly


2. TO APPOINT A VICE-CHAIR FOR THE ENSUING YEAR 
 

It was moved and seconded that Mr Richard Dommett (MBACT) be appointed as Vice Chair 
of the Canal Group for the ensuing year.  By a show of hands (and in noting there were 7 for, 
0 against and 0 abstentions) this was unanimously agreed. 
 

RESOLVED that Mr R. Dommett be appointed as Vice-Chair of the Monmouthshire 
and Brecon Canal - Crumlin Arm Working Group. 

 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors B. Owen and A. Leonard, together 
with C. Adams (Highway Engineering Group Manager) and A. Dallimore (Regeneration 
Services Manager)   
 
 
CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENT  – MEMBERSHIP CHANGES 
 
Councillor A. Whitcombe (Chair) gave a warm welcome to new Councillors, representatives 
and Officers in attendance, namely Councillors Kristian Woodland and Ceri Wright, 
Reverend John Collier (MBACT) and Sarah Stook (Principal Engineer).  He also thanked 
former councillors Ross Whiting (Risca West) and Mike Davies (Crumlin) for their long 
service and commitment to the Canal Group.   
 
The Chair expressed his thanks to Mr Kevin Kinsey (Engineering) who had played an 
integral role in the Canal Group for many years as its lead Officer.  It noted that Mr Kinsey 
had recently left the Authority for a new opportunity, and the Chair and other Members 
wished him all the very best in his future career.   
 
The Chair also thanked Mr Bernard Illman (MBACT) who had previously attended many  
meetings of the Canal Group as an MBACT representative, and wished him well for the 
future.  

 
 
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 Councillor C. Morgan declared a personal in Agenda Items 6 and 7 as a member of the 

Inland Waterways Association (as a private boat owner) and remained in the meeting during 
consideration of the items.   

 
 
5. MINUTES – 27TH FEBRUARY 2020 

 
It was moved and seconded that subject to a correction at Item 6, Paragraph 4 of the 
minutes (to reference the Maritime and Coastguard Agency and not the Islwyn Canal 
Association), the minutes of the Monmouthshire and Brecon Canal - Crumlin Arm Working 
Group held on 27th February 2020 be approved as a correct record.  By a show of hands 
(and in noting there were 4 For, 0 Against and 0 Abstentions) this was unanimously agreed. 

  
RESOLVED that subject to a correction at Item 6, Paragraph 4 of the minutes (to 
reference the Maritime and Coastguard Agency and not the Islwyn Canal 
Association) the minutes of the Monmouthshire and Brecon Canal - Crumlin Arm 
Working Group held on 27th February 2020 be approved as a correct record. 

 

Page 2



 REPORTS OF OFFICERS 

 
 Consideration was given to the following reports. 
 
 
6. UPDATE ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE CANAL 

 
 Sarah Stook (Principal Engineer) presented the report, which detailed the current and 

planned maintenance and any capital works planned for the forthcoming year.  The report 
set out details of current funding availability and outlined any current operational issues 
regarding the usage and the condition of the Monmouthshire and Brecon Canal – Crumlin 
Arm.   

 
Members were updated on the range of subjects relating to the Canal as set out in the report 
and Miss Stook responded to queries from the Group in turn. 

 
Maintenance Update 

 
Canal Channel - Weed cutting/channel maintenance for 2022 is planned for September/ 
October following ecology checks by the CCBC Principal Ecologist. 
 
Grass Maintenance – The first cut of the season was undertaken in March and then on a 3 

to 4 weekly cycle up until the final cut planned for September/October 2022.  The amended 
cutting regime has been maintained throughout the Canal. 
 
2022/2023 Works Programme 
 
Towpath - Patch repairs are required to the asphalt surface within the towpath section that 

forms part of the adopted highway on Temperance Hill, and these have been raised with the 
Highways Department. 
 
Access Enhancement - All lockable access barriers (7 in total) have been reviewed for 

integrity and new locking mechanisms have been installed. This was a consequence of 
some of the existing ones being damaged and/or missing. 
 
Water Control - The culverted section linking the Deeps with Temperance Hill (Darren 

Road) was cleansed in May 2022 and later CCTV surveyed in June 2022.  The survey 
footage indicated that there is an approximate length of 30m with an associated chamber 
mid-way that has settled considerably.  The settlement has resulted in the loss of around 
70% of the pipe’s cross-sectional area.  A funding bid is being submitted to cover the cost of 
repairs.  
 
A contractor has also been commissioned to install a trash screen at the inlet pipe which is 
due for completion within the coming weeks.  
 
Miss Stook emphasised that ensuring the integrity of the canal channel together with the 
maintenance of the culverts and water levels is the priority of the council.  However, there 
will be a review of the Canal’s priorities based upon recent inspections and discussions and 
the programme for the next phases of relining may potentially be altered subject to funding.  
 
The Canal Group were advised that the Council have been made aware of silt accumulation 
across three areas of the Canal (upstream and downstream at Green Meadow Bridge and 
an area at Medart Place known as the Dragon’s Teeth).   Enquiries have been made with the 
Team around removing this silt accumulation and installing sections of reinforced concrete 
channel and associated silt traps at these locations, in order to enable Canal usage and to 

Page 3



alleviate the influx of silt and congestion of water.  However the build-up of silt is a natural 
ongoing occurrence and it is recognised that an ongoing revenue maintenance commitment 
needs to be in place.   
 
Dredging – In view of the issues relating to silt accumulation, any potential dredging 

programmed for 2022 will be localised due to the works associated with the installation of 
concrete channel sections and associated silt traps at the aforementioned locations.  It is 
also proposed to clear some of the high spots of silt within the canal invert north of Green 
Meadow Bridge for approximately 500m (Phase 5), which will be subject to available 
revenue budget and also ecological approval. 

 
Tree Maintenance - Due to the ash dieback within Wales, an extensive tree survey and the 

subsequent development of maintenance regime has been commissioned and is due for 
commencement end of July/August 2022.  This is likely to take a considerable amount of 
budget but is required for the continued safety of the canal and users.  Reactive works to 
tree falls will also be ongoing. 
 
External Funding - Officers within CCBC’s Infrastructure Division have submitted a £100k 

funding bid to attend to the settlement failure in Darren Road culvert, however there is no 
update available at present on the bid outcome.   
 
Officers within CCBC’s Regeneration and Planning Division have been working on the bid for 
funding related to the Levelling Up Cwmcarn Tourist Legacy Project Proposal, but on this 
occasion however, there has been very little opportunity to bid for funding for the Canal.  The 
Council will explore potential available funding streams to attend to the installation of 
reinforced concrete channel sections and associated silt traps. 

 
Channel Leak Repair – Members were advised that the Canal bank suffered a breach 

following Storm Dennis, which was isolated and repaired under reactive emergency works. 
The breach occurred in the section that was later named Phase 5 (from Green Meadow 
Bridge approximately 500m north).  Phase 5 relining will also now be a priority for CCBC to 
prevent future breaches of the canal.  
 
An option has now been determined to attend to the leaking aqueduct, which consists of 
slow grouting through the face of the structure at suitable centres.  However, Listed Building 
Consent is required for these works, which has not progressed as yet due to the pandemic 
together with operational and budget demands. 
 
Emergency Works - The breach within the section north of Green Meadow Bridge was 

repaired under reactive emergency works and has presented no further issues to date. 
 

Funding 

 
Capital - The capital budget allocation for 2022/23 is £200k, and Officers are reviewing how 

allocation remains as it is partly required to cover residual costs outstanding on the recently 
completed realigning contract works for Phases 3 and 4 across Pontywaun down to the 
Deeps. 
 
Revenue - The budget allocation for 2022/23 was £100k and Officers are reviewing the 

remaining available budget.  It was noted that the revenue fund is used to make isolated 
repairs/refurbishment to miscellaneous elements of the Canal that are picked up as a result 
of inspections or reports of dilapidation.  The most recent works carried out are the 
replacement of fencing (approximately 30m in length) at Constant Row and the upgrade of 
the stepped access linking the towpath with Medart Street.  There are also some patch 
repairs required to the asphalt surface within the towpath section that forms part of the 

Page 4



adopted highway on Temperance Hill. Reactive works to tree falls and grass cutting regimes 
are also ongoing. 

 
Boats 

 
Due to recent communications from Cabinet Members and potential business proposals, 
CCBC’s Licensing Department has been commissioned to prepare a new fee setting regime 
that covers minor craft such as canoes/kayaks/paddleboards and small rowing boats. This 
work is ongoing and when available will be presented to Scrutiny Committee and the Canal 
Group for comment and endorsement. 
 
It was explained that as discussed earlier in the update and subject to the Canal Group’s 
approval, CCBC’s Engineering Projects Group would be amenable to commencing design 
works associated with the installation of silt traps to facilitate the relaunch of the trip boat 
moored at Whysom’s Wharf.  This may be undertaken in conjunction with the Waterways 
Recovery Group.  However, as previously noted, this work depends on available funding as 
repairs to the Darren Road culvert and the integrity of the Canal are the priority. 
 
In conclusion, the Canal Group were advised that a full programme of works for the coming 
year is being developed, subject to available funding from the capital and revenue budgets,  
together with the potential external funding to achieve these objectives.  It was also noted 
that the Caerphilly 5-year Canal Management Plan will soon be reviewed and updated as the 
priorities change.  
 
Miss Stook also provided an update on matters across the Canal that had come to light since 
the preparation of the report.  In relation to the long-standing issue around tampering of the 
Manor Road feed, Miss Stook has been in contact with Welsh Water who are carrying out an 
investigation regarding the illegal connection to the surface water drainage system.  The 
Council have agreed and allocated a portion of the revenue budget to allow for replanting 
works across the completed phases of the Canal, prior to fish stocks being replenished by 
the Angling Club, and work is ongoing between the Club and the CCBC Ecology Team in 
this regard.  In relation to the interim desilting works, it is intended to carry these out at the 
same time as the repairs to the Darren Road culvert.  The Canal Group were also advised 
that repairs have been undertaken to a vandalized bench downstream of Manor Road and a 
replacement will be added to the revenue list. 
 
Miss Stook drew the Canal Group’s attention to recent towpath works near Halls Road 
terrace.  It was explained that the golden-coloured surface had been replaced with tarmac 
during the contractor works and that the original surface is not available for replacement.  
Further works to the towpath are also anticipated due to a request from the Pontywaun 
Spiritualist Church who wish to carry out works in the area to install waste drainage.  
Therefore, the Canal Group were asked whether they would prefer the surface to be 
replaced with a coloured asphalt or a regular black asphalt once the works are completed.  
Later in the meeting, a Member highlighted that a coloured surface could easily fade and 
suggested that black surfacing might have more longevity. 
 
The Chair thanked Miss Stook for her detailed report and it was noted that a request had 
been received from Mr Richard Wysom (Islwyn Canal Association) to speak on this agenda 
item.  Mr Wysom was welcomed to the meeting and was invited to address the Canal Group. 
 
Mr Wysom introduced himself as the Chairman of the Islwyn Canal Association and 
expressed his thanks to the Principal Engineer and Committee Services Officer for all their 
recent advice and assistance in facilitating his speaking request.   
 

Page 5



Mr Wysom explained that he operates a tea-room business (known as Whysom’s Wharf) 
alongside the Darren area of the Canal, which includes a tour boat known as the Islwyn Lily.  
However, he explained that the boat has been landlocked since 2016 due to significant 
silting issues and he therefore asked the Canal Group when these issues were likely to be 
resolved so that the Islwyn Lily can resume navigation.  Mr Wysom also referred to tourism 
signage along the Canal and expressed disappointment that these signs do not make any 
reference to Whysom’s Wharf, despite his involvement in various funding avenues for the 
Canal. 
 
Miss Stook responded to Mr Wysom’s representation and explained that in terms of the tour 
boat, moving forward the Council will be exploring opportunities to acquire funding to put 
suitable structures in place to address silting issues.  Miss Stook explained that the Council 
is intending to carry out some interim silt clearance but emphasised that any long-term 
solution will depend on achieving suitable funding and taking into account Canal priorities 
such as the fixing of the culvert.  She also explained that if any structures are put in place to 
address silting issues, then these will also require a budget for annual monitoring to take 
place. 
 
Mr Wysom confirmed with Miss Stook that the silting issues affecting the operation of the 
Islwyn Lily were of particular concern at Green Meadow and Dragon’s Teeth.  He added that 
the silting issues at Dragon’s Teeth were compounded by logs and building debris being 
dumped along the Canal bank.  Miss Stook thanked Mr Wysom for bringing this to her 
attention and confirmed that she would ask the Engineering Team to look into this issue.  
Miss Stook also confirmed that it is intended to commence vegetation clearance to the 
Darren section of the Canal at the end of August 2022, once the bird-nesting season has 
finished, and it is hoped that desilting in these areas can be carried out at the same time by 
the same contractor. 
 
Questions were then invited from the Canal Group on the contents of the Officer’s report.  A 
Member referred to the installation of new locking mechanisms to barriers across the Canal 
and explained that he had received some complaints around disabled access whereby 
wheelchair and scooter users were unable to use the towpath.  The Member asked if 
consideration could be given to installing radar key locks at these locations and it was 
arranged that Miss Stook would contact the Member following the meeting to confirm the 
exact locations where these issues are being experienced.  The Member also highlighted 
instances of where towpath barriers have been left unlocked by maintenance crews and has 
led to motorcyclists using the towpath.  Miss Stook confirmed that she would also look into 
this issue. 
 
A Member referred to the work of the Waterways Recovery Group and their involvement 
across the Newport stretch of the Canal, and asked if Caerphilly Council could explore 
working with this Group in order to maximise volunteering, employment and regeneration 
opportunities across the local community, and also draw on the volume of experience 
available from the Waterways Recovery Group.   Miss Stook confirmed that although this 
avenue could be explored, consideration would firstly need to be given to the procurement 
process and the contractors involved with the various aspects of the Canal work to ascertain 
what role/remit the Waterways Recovery Group could potentially have in the regeneration of 
the Canal. 
 
A Member sought an update on the damaged steps to the rear of Carlton Terrace in 
Crosskeys which lead to the Canal bank, and it was confirmed that this would come under 
the remit of the Countryside Services department.   
 
A Member referred to the drying up of the Darren Brook and the stream going down to Green 
Meadow, and asked whether this was related to nearby forestry works and whether this in 

Page 6



turn had contributed to silting issues, and he asked if Natural Resources Wales were 
investigating the cause.  Miss Stook explained that although she had only recently taken up 
post, she had been made aware of an instance where a person was living rough in the 
nearby woods and had altered the direction of one of the watercourses, which is believed to 
have contributed to the silting issues.  However, Miss Stook emphasised that silting is a 
natural issue and as the Council do not own the land, all they can do is commit to 
maintaining and addressing any silting issues that occur along the Canal.   

 
Following discussion, the Canal Group noted the content of the report and thanked Miss 
Stook for her update. 
 
 

6. UPDATE FROM MR RICHARD DOMMETT - MBACT 

 
 Mr Dommett (MBACT) provided a verbal update on recent MBACT developments and 

matters relating to the Canal.  
 
 The Canal Group were advised that Mr Dommett stepped down as MBACT Chair back in 

2020 during a period of ill health and Reverend John Collier was appointed as the new 
Chair.  It was noted that following his recovery, Mr Dommett subsequently agreed to take on 
the role of Regeneration Consultant to MBACT. 

 
 Members were advised of projects in progress, with it noted that Torfaen Council have 

recently appointed a new Canal officer.  Mr Dommett and Reverend Collier are representing 
MBACT in a new Torfaen Canal Working Partnership, along with representatives from other 
bodies including Bridge 46, a constituted group whose members have been looking at 
possible options to improve facilities at Five Locks.  They have also been very active in 
seeing the Canal open through the new development at Hanbury Village Wharf Development 
in South Sebastopol. 

 
 It was emphasised that Torfaen councillors are keen to see the canal regeneration 

programme move forward.  The first stage is to restore the Canal from Five Locks to Mount 
Pleasant and the second stage is to complete restoration from Mount Pleasant to Cwmbran 
town centre, which will be a long-term project requiring a significant level of expenditure.  It 
was explained that major funders wish to see a restoration programme for the entire Canal to 
ensure it is the intention of all relevant local authorities to regenerate their own sections of 
the Canal. 

 
 Mr Dommett explained that MBACT have taken on the task of updating the Regeneration 

Programme (Living Links) which was published in 2007 as part of a Heritage Lottery Fund 
application.  It was noted that MBACT also has the opportunity to resubmit the Ty Coch 
Waterway Park Project application to HLF which was put on hold at the time of the Covid-19 
lockdown.  The consultants who wrote the original Business Plan four years ago have been 
commissioned to update the original viability survey.   

 
MBACT have also been advising Newport and Torfaen Councils on planning applications 
involving a towpath access bridge adjacent to lock 34 at Kimberly Park Newport, towing path 
surfacing and a programme to replace all the lock gates which were fitted during the first 
phase of restoration. 
 
Reverend Collier was then invited to add to the update from Mr Dommett, and he explained 
that he has arranged for Mr Wyn Mitchell (MBACT) to hold discussions around Canal 
matters with Newport and Rhondda Cynon Taf Councils.  Reverend Collier explained that it 
is also his wish to restart the wider Monmouthshire and Brecon Canals Regeneration 
Partnership Group (involving representatives from each of the local authority Canal Groups), 

Page 7



even if they only meet on a twice-annual basis, in order for Canal partners to share good 
practice and help support each other.  The Canal Group were advised that MBACT are also 
looking to secure funding in order to purchase a refurbished reed cutting machine which can 
be loaned out to various councils in order to assist with maintenance across their stretches 
of the Canal. 
 

  A Member asked if meetings of the National Assembly Cross-Party Group on Waterways are 
still taking place.  Mr Dommett explained that this particular Group ceased to operate when 
the Regeneration Manager for British Waterways retired.  He emphasised that the priority is 
to resurrect the Monmouthshire and Brecon Canals Regeneration Partnership Group, and 
then if the Partnership Group were subsequently minded to develop a focus group similar in 
nature to the National Assembly Group, then this is something that could be explored further 
down the line. 

 
The Canal Group thanked Mr Dommett and Reverend Collier for their presentation and 
noted the details of the update. 
 

 
 The Chair thanked those present for their attendance and contributions and the meeting 

closed at 5.58 p.m. 
 
 

Approved as a correct record and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and 
recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on 2nd March 2023, they were signed by the 
Chair. 

 
 
 
 

______________________ 
CHAIR 

 

Page 8



 
 

MONMOUTHSHIRE AND BRECON CANAL –  
CRUMLIN ARM WORKING GROUP – 2ND MARCH 2023 

 
 
SUBJECT:  UPDATE ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE CANAL  
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR ECONOMY AND 

ENVIRONMENT 
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Canal Working Group Members on all matters 
relating to the Monmouthshire and Brecon Canal – Crumlin Arm. 

 
 

2. SUMMARY 

 
2.1 This report details the current and planned maintenance and any capital works 

planned for the forthcoming year. Details are given on current funding availability and 
a general statement is provided outlining any current operational issues regarding the 
usage and the condition of the Monmouthshire and Brecon Canal – Crumlin Arm. 

 
2.2 It is acknowledged that ensuring the integrity of the canal channel and connecting 

culverts thus maintaining water flows and levels is the priority of the council. 
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
4.1 For information only. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 

 
5.1 MAINTENANCE UPDATE 

 
5.1.1  Canal Channel 

 
Weed cutting/channel maintenance for 2023 will be scheduled for the usual months - 
September/October. It shall be noted that for this year’s weed maintenance, 
additional supervision will be included to ensure there is no material left obstructing 
the towpath causing a hazard to users. This additional element will be included due 
to issues in this respect being observed and raised in last year’s weed cutting 
operations.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 
5.1.2  Grass Maintenance 

 
The first cut of the season will be undertaken this month (March) and then on a 3 to 4 
weekly cycle up until the final cut planned for September/October 2023. The 
amended cutting regime has been maintained throughout the canal corridor. 
With specific reference to Temperance Hill section, a request has been made to 
Parks Department that advance notice of their attendance is provided. This is in 
order residents may remove personal vehicles from the verge areas for the team to 
have unobstructed access. 

 
5.2.  2023/2024 WORKS PROGRAMME  

 
5.2.1  Towpath  

 
The scheduled patch repairs to the asphalt surface within the towpath section that 
forms part of the adopted highway on Temperance Hill was completed October 2022. 
There are no further planned towpath works for 2023/2024. 
 

5.2.2  Access Enhancement  

 
A query previously raised by Cllr. George with respect to an alternate locking 
mechanism accessible to those with disabilities was queried with the relevant 
department but unfortunately seemed to be beyond the realms of their 
experience/capacity. Consequently, this was not progressed at the time. 
If there is an ongoing issue however, officers are open to further investigation on 
options for this. 
It shall be noted that the Parks Team have been reminded to ensure the timely 
locking of gates following the grass cutting cycles. 
 

5.2.3   Water Control  

 
Under the recommendation of a former member of MBACT Mr R. Dommett, a 
suitable trash screen at the inlet pipe of The Darran culvert was fabricated and 
installed August 2022. 
 
The culverted section linking the Darran with Temperance Hill has now been 
reinstated and has been operational from mid-February 2023. During the course of 
the repair works officers made the decision to install a penstock valve in one of the 
new chambers. The intention of which is to help control/maintain water levels at the 
downstream section given the entire area is generally affected by mining subsidence.  

 
5.2.4  Dredging  

 
Localised dredging works at the three known problem areas currently stifling the 
potential relaunch of the trip boat at Wysom Wharf commenced on site end of 
February 2023 and will last for a period of 4 weeks. It is anticipated that in future 
years the de-silting of these areas will become less onerous as regular visits (either 
annually or bi-annually subject to ongoing monitoring by officers) will be made 
together with potential channel/silt trap improvements (subject to securing external 
funding). 
A fourth location (Fernlea) has been identified for de-silting and will be scheduled 
within the coming months. Unfortunately, officers were unable to include Fernlea 
within the recent de-silting works due to the footpath number having a different one to 
that covered by the existing closure currently live on the site. 
 
 

Page 10



5.2.5  Tree Maintenance  
 

An extensive tree survey of the full canal corridor was completed by October 2022 
and planned tree maintenance with respect to high priorities has been undertaken 
within the given timeframes of the works orders. Reactive works to tree falls is also 
ongoing. 
 

5.2.6  External Funding  
 

Funding was secured to attend to the repairs of the Darran Culvert and has been 
utilised in this respect.  
 
Officer’s within CCBC Regeneration and Planning Division have identified an 
opportunity for funding to aid design works for potential improvements to the head of 
the canal at Pontywaun. No commission received yet but anticipated within the new 
financial year. 
 

5.2.7  Channel Leak Repair  

 
Phase 5 (covering the area in which the previous breach occurred as a direct result 
of Storm Dennis) re-lining works (from Greenmeadow Bridge approximately 500m 
north remains a priority for the council (subject to securing funding). 
 
Another area has since been identified for priority lining is the Gelli Avenue to 
Thistleway Section (subject to available funding).  
 
It is anticipated that the leaking aqueduct may be attended to as design works 
progress for potential improvements to the head of the canal at Pontywaun. 

 
5.2.8  Emergency Works  
 

No emergency works to report. 
 

5.3. FUNDING 
 
5.3.1  Capital  
 

The capital budget allocation for 2023/24 has been largely utilised to cover residual 
costs outstanding on the last contracted major relining works that were completed 
(Phases 3 and 4 Pontywaun down to the Deeps)  
 

5.3.2  Revenue  
 

The budget allocation for 2022/23 was £100k with an allocation from reserves should 
the funding for repairs to the Darran not come into fruition. Officers are reviewing 
remaining available budget, but the revenue fund is used to make isolated 
repairs/refurbishment to miscellaneous elements of the canal. The most recent works 
that have been issued is the replacement of a damaged bench just downstream of 
Manor Road together with repairs to the knee rail fencing at the slipway. There are 
also some miscellaneous fence repair works throughout the canal corridor. Reactive 
works to tree falls and grass/weed cutting regimes are also ongoing. 

 
5.4.  BOATS 
 

5.4.1  Other than the de-silting works north of the Darran to facilitate the relaunch of the trip 
boat, there are no other updates with respect to licensing. 

Page 11



 Whilst it has previously been confirmed and documented that the slip way at Halls 
Road Terrace would be re-instated in the future, MBACT has proposed that the 
Inland Waterways Recovery Group attend to this as a stand-alone piece of work to 
be completed sooner rather than that programmed by the council. 

 MBACT have further proposed to arrange and fund the accommodation element for 
the Volunteers. Officers are grateful for this proposal of support from MBACT and the 
Group and will review/discuss further with respect to a suitable design for it subject to 
Capital funding being available. Officers will keep interested parties updated as this 
progresses. 

 
5.5 Conclusion   

 
A full programme of works for the coming year will be developed, subject to available 
funding from the Capital and Revenue budgets together with potential external 
funding to achieve these objectives. 
It shall be noted however, that reactive/emergency works will be undertaken and take 
precedence over planned works with respect to time and budget. 
 
Note: CCBC’s 5-year Canal Management Plan will soon be reviewed/updated as the 
priorities change. 
 
 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 

6.1 No assumptions have been made regarding the information contained in this report. 
 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

7.1 Report is for information only. 
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1 There are no financial implications. 
 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no personnel implications. 
 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 

 
10.1 Consultation as below for information only. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  

 
11.1 No requirements in this respect, information only. 
  

Page 12



Author:   Sarah Stook, Principal Engineer, stooksj@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 
Consultees:  Christina Harrhy – Chief Executive 
  Mark S Williams – Corporate Director for Economy and Environment 
  Marcus Lloyd – Head of Infrastructure 
  Rob Tranter – Head of Legal Services and  Monitoring Officer 
  Stephen Harris – Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer 

Page 13

mailto:stooksj@caerphilly.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14


	Agenda
	4 Cynhaliwyd y Gweithgor Cangen Crymlyn - Camlas Sir Fynwy ac Aberhonddu ar 25ain Gorffennaf 2022.
	5 I dderbyn diweddariad ar faterion sy’n ymwneud â’r Gamlas.

